
From: ASCC New Claims
To: Kris Higdon (DOC); Yolanda Charles (DOC)
Cc: Kathryn Irby; Mika Tucker
Subject: CLAIM: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, Claim No. 250215
Date: Tuesday, November 12, 2024 9:27:00 AM
Attachments: Ronald Robinson v. ADC agency ltr .pdf

Ronald Robinson Initial request, claim form, supporting docs, def ltr, MTE and Order (combined) - 250215.pdf

Please see attached. Contact Mika Tucker with any questions.

Thank you,
Caitlin

Caitlin McDaniel
Administrative Specialist II
Arkansas State Claims Commission

101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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November 12, 2024 
 
 
Mr. Kris Higdon           (via email) 
Arkansas Division of Correction 
1302 Pike Avenue, Suite C 
North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114 
 
RE: Ronald Robinson v. Arkansas Division of Correction  

Claim No.  250215 
____________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Dear Mr. Higdon, 
 
  Enclosed please find a copy of the above-styled claim filed against the Arkansas Division 
of Correction. Pursuant to the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure, as well as Claims Commission 
Rule 2.2, you have thirty days from the date of service in which to file a responsive pleading. 
 
  Your responsive pleading should include your agency number, fund code, appropriation 
code, and activity/section/unit/element that this claim should be charged against, if liability is 
admitted, or if the Claims Commission approves this claim for payment. This information is 
necessary even if your agency denies liability. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
      Mika Tucker 
 
 
ES:  cmcdaniel 
 
cc:   Ronald Robinson (ADC ), Claimant (w/ encl.)  
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BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
 
RONALD ROBINSON (ADC ) CLAIMANT 
 
V. CLAIM NO. 250215 
 
ARKANSAS DIVISION OF 
CORRECTION  RESPONDENT 
 

ORDER 

Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) are the motions1 

of Ronald Robinson (the “Claimant”) for leave to exceed the page limitations set in Ark. Code 

Ann. § 19-10-208(f)(1). Upon review of the complaint and supporting documentation, the 

Commission hereby GRANTS Claimant’s motions for leave and will accept the complaint and 

supporting documentation provided by Claimant with his complaint and motions to exceed. 

However, this order does not constitute any determination as to the validity of Claimant’s claim 

or any other pending motions.  

  

1 Claimant filed motions to exceed on September 18, 2024, and on September 26, 2024.  
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IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 

                                                           

                                                    
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Dee Holcomb 

 
       

 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Henry Kinslow, Chair 
 

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Sylvester Smith 
 

        
      DATE: November 7, 2024 
 

 
 Notice(s) which may apply to your claim 

(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a Motion for Reconsideration or a Notice of Appeal 
with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1). If a Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that 
party then has twenty (20) days from the transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a Notice 
of Appeal with the Claims Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of the Claims 
Commission may only be appealed to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a)(3). 
 

(2) If a Claimant is awarded less than $15,000.00 by the Claims Commission at hearing, that claim is held forty (40) 
days from the date of disposition before payment will be processed. See Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-211(a). Note: This 
does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement agreements. 
 

(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of $15,000.00 or more are referred to the General Assembly for approval 
and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-215(b). 
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From: Kris Higdon (DOC)
To: ASCC Pleadings
Cc: Tawnie Rowell (DOC)
Subject: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, 250215
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2024 7:50:58 AM
Attachments: Rule 12(b)-MTD.pdf

Please see attached motion to dismiss.
 
Kris Alan Higdon (Mr.)
Attorney at Law
Office of the Secretary
1302 Pike Ave., Suite C
North Little Rock, AR 72114
Phone: 501-682-9593
Kris.a.higdon@doc.arkansas.gov
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From: Misty Scott on behalf of ASCC Pleadings
To: Tawnie Rowell (DOC); Miles S. Morgan; Trent Rigdon (DOC)
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; Yolanda Charles (DOC); Mika Tucker
Subject: ORDER: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, Claim No. 250215
Date: Tuesday, April 8, 2025 3:14:00 PM
Attachments: Ronald Robinson v. ADC .pdf

Ronald Robinson-Order.pdf

Dear Counselors:
 
Please see attached. Contact Mika Tucker with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 

Misty
 
Misty Scott
Arkansas State Claims Commission
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BEFORE THE ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
 
RONALD ROBINSON (ADC  CLAIMANT 
 
V. CLAIM NO. 250215 
 
ARKANSAS DIVISION OF 
CORRECTION  RESPONDENT 
 
 

ORDER 

Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) is a motion filed 

by the Arkansas Division of Correction (the “Respondent”) to dismiss the claim of Ronald 

Robinson (the “Claimant”). Based upon a review of the motion, the arguments made therein, and 

the law of Arkansas, the Commission hereby finds as follows: 

1. Claimant filed his claim on August 7, 2024, seeking $14,088.00 in damages related 

to his allegations of unsanitary living conditions.  

2. Respondent filed a motion to dismiss arguing, inter alia, that Claimant failed to 

exhaust his administrative remedies. 

3. Claimant filed a response arguing, inter alia, that his grievance documents are 

“available upon request.” 

4. Upon review of the pleadings, the Commission agrees with Respondent that 

dismissal is proper. Claimant has failed to attach any documentation that he exhausted his 

administrative remedies. Under the doctrine of exhaustion of administrative remedies, a claimant 

must utilize and exhaust the administrative remedies before seeking relief from the Claims 

Commission. See Ark. Dept. of Health and Human Servs. v. Smith, 370 Ark. 490, 492-93 (2007). 

The purpose of this doctrine is to provide the agency with an opportunity to address the issue. See 
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id. Where a claimant fails to exhaust his or her administrative remedies, the Commission lacks 

jurisdiction to hear the claim. 

5. An additional basis to dismiss exists pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-10-223, 

which provides that dismissal is proper “if the claimant has failed to submit . . . documentation 

that the claimant has exhausted all available . . . administrative remedies.” 

6. Respondent’s motion to dismiss is GRANTED, and Claimant’s claim is 

DISMISSED without prejudice. 

7. If Claimant did exhaust his administrative remedies, Claimant may refile his claim 

and attach the relevant documentation as required by Arkansas law.  
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
Paul Morris, Chair 

    

       
      _______________________________________ 
      ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
      Sylvester Smith 
 
              
      DATE: April 3, 2025 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

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
To: Tawnie Hughes (DOC); Miles Morgan (DOC); Trent Rigdon (DOC); Taylor Reavis (DOC)
Cc: ASCC Pleadings; Mika Tucker; Yolanda Charles (DOC)
Subject: ORDER: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, Claim No. 250215
Date: Monday, November 10, 2025 3:32:28 PM
Attachments: Ronald Robinson v. ADC.pdf

Ronald Robinson-order.pdf

Dear Counselors:
 
Please see attached. Contact Kathryn Irby with any questions.
 

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
 

ORDER ON CLAIMANT’S 
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 
Now before the Arkansas State Claims Commission (the “Commission”) is a motion filed 

by Ronald Robinson (the “Claimant”) for reconsideration of the Commission’s April 3, 2025, order 

denying and dismissing Claimant’s claim against the Arkansas Division of Correction (the 

“Respondent”). Based upon a review of the motion, the arguments made therein, and the law of 

Arkansas, the Commission hereby unanimously finds as follows: 

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

3. Claimant filed a response to the motion dismiss, arguing, inter alia, that his 

grievance documents are “available upon request.” 

4. The Commission granted Respondent’s motion to dismiss on April 3, 2025, 

because Claimant failed to provide any documentation that he exhausted his administrative 

remedies. The Commission’s order provided that the claim was dismissed without prejudice and, 

if Claimant did exhaust his administrative remedies, Claimant may refile his claim and attach the 

relevant documentation as required by Arkansas law.  
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5. Claimant thereafter filed the instant motion for reconsideration, arguing, inter alia, 

that he did exhaust his administrative remedies.  Claimant attaches documentation regarding three 

grievances, which indicates that these grievances were rejected prior to the filing of his claim due 

to Claimant’s failure to follow the grievance procedures.  

6. Respondent did not respond to the motion for reconsideration.  

7. In analyzing a motion for reconsideration, Rule 7.1 of the Commission Rules and 

Regulations states that motions for reconsideration “will only be entertained if they set forth new 

or additional evidence which was not [previously] available . . . .” 

8. The Commission finds that the motion does not set forth new or additional evidence 

not previously available. The Commission notes that the documentation regarding the rejection of 

grievances attached to Claimant’s motion for reconsideration predate the filing of his claim. The 

Commission further notes that, when a grievance is rejected due to a claimant’s failure to follow 

the agency’s deadlines and procedural rules, a claimant has failed to exhaust his administrative 

remedies. See Woodford v. Ngo, 548 U.S. 81, 90, 126 S. Ct. 2378, 2385 (2006). As such, 

Claimant’s motion for reconsideration is DENIED, and the April 3, 2025, Commission order 

remains in effect.  

9. The Commission notes that Claimant’s motion for reconsideration contains a notice 

of appeal. Therefore, the Commission will transmit this claim file to the Arkansas General 

Assembly pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211. 

  

I.5

195



IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 

                                                           

                                                    
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Dee Holcomb 

 
    

       
      _______________________________________ 

ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
Henry Kinslow 

    
 

       
      _______________________________________ 
      ARKANSAS STATE CLAIMS COMMISSION 
      Paul Morris, Chair 
 
              
      DATE: November 7, 2025 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Notices which may apply to this claim 
 

(1) A party has forty (40) days from transmission of this Order to file a  Motion for Reconsideration or a  Notice of Appeal 
with the Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(1). If a  Motion for Reconsideration is denied, that party then 
has twenty (20) days from the transmission of the denial of the Motion for Reconsideration to file a  Notice of Appeal 
with the Commission. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(1)(B)(ii). A decision of the Commission may only be appealed 
to the General Assembly. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-211(a)(3). 
 

(2) If a  Claimant is awarded $15,000.00 or less by the Commission at hearing, that award is held forty (40) days from 
the date of disposition before payment will be processed to allow either party to utilize its remedies under Ark. Code 
Ann. § 25-44-211(a). Note: This does not apply to agency admissions of liability and negotiated settlement 
agreements. 
 

(3) Awards or negotiated settlement agreements of more than $15,000.00 are referred to the General Assembly for 
approval and authorization to pay. Ark. Code Ann. § 25-44-215(b). 
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From: ASCC New Claims
To:
Subject: REQUESTED ORDER: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, Claim No. 250215
Date: Thursday, December 11, 2025 3:20:00 PM
Attachments: Ronald Robinson v. ADC.pdf

Ronald Robinson-order.pdf

Dear Mr. Robinson,
 
Per our conversation, please see attached.
 
Thank you,
Caitlin
 
Caitlin McDaniel
Administrative Specialist II
Arkansas State Claims Commission

101 East Capitol Avenue, Suite 410
Little Rock, Arkansas 72201
(501) 682-1619
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From: O O
To: ASCC New Claims
Subject: Re: REQUESTED ORDER: Ronald Robinson v. ADC, Claim No. 250215
Date: Thursday, December 11, 2025 3:24:19 PM

Thank you, I got it.

On Thu, Dec 11, 2025 at 3:21 PM ASCC New Claims <ASCC.New.Claims@arkansas.gov>
wrote:

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
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